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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor’s report of the charitable
company for the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020. The annual report serves the purpose of both a Trustees'
report, and a Directors’ report under company law.

The academic year 2019/20 has been a very challenging year with very good progress In almost all aspects of the
Trust's development, until 23 March 2020 when the Government closed all schools due to the Covid-19 pandemic.

University Academy Holbeach (UAH), University Academy Long Sutton (UALS), Holbeach Primary Academy (HPA) and
Gosberton House Academy (GHA) all remained partially open for vulnerable pupils and for the children of key
workers. Holbeach Bank Academy (HBA) was closed and all services for those children and families were provided at
HPA, The four academies remained open throughout and HBA reopened on 1 June 2020 when some year groups were
able to return. Our academies were open throughout the Easter holidays and Spring bank holiday week including all
four bank holiday dates,

A full report on the impact of Covid-19 will be provided in the strategic report section.
Development of the Trust

The Lincoinshire Educational Trust was formed in 2014 when University Academy Holbeach agreed to become a Multi-
Academy Trust (MAT) and was renamed and gained new articles of association and funding agreement.

University Academy Holbeach is an 11 to 19 academy based in Holbeach, in South East Lincolnshire. The academy was
established in 2011 following the closure of the St Guthlac's School in Crowland and it's subsequent merger with the
George Farmer Technology and Language College. The George Farmer Technology and Language College had been
managing S5t Guthlac's School for four years prior to the merger. In seeking to set up the new academy at the George
Farmer Technology and Language College, the local authority invited the University of Lincoln to be it's education
sponsor. At the time of transfer, Ofsted rated it as good and remains a very good school,

In 2014, Holbeach Primary School joined the newly established MAT as a converter and was renamed Holbeach
Primary Academy. This academy is a 4 to 11 academy based on an adjoining site to University Academy Holbeach. At
the time of transfer, Ofsted rated it as requiring improvement, but it is now a good school.

In 2016, Gosberton House Special School joined the MAT as a converter and was renamed Gosberton House Academy.
Itis 3 2 to 11 specialist Academy In autism. This Academy Is based approximately 13 miles from Holbeach. At the time
of transfer, Ofsted rated it as outstanding and it has maintained that judgement in the Trust. It also provides the
autism outreach service for Lincolnshire County Council,

In June 2018, Holbeach Bank Primary School joined the MAT as a 4 to 11 sponsored academy at the request of
Lincolnshire County Council and the Regional Schools Commissioner. It is based less than two miles from Holbeach
Primary Academy. It is a very small rural school and at the time of transfer, Ofsted rated it as inadequate,

In July 2019, the Peele Community College joined the MAT as an 11 to 16 sponsored academy at the request of
Uncolnshire County Council and the Regional Schooils Commissioner. It was renamed University Academy Long Sutton
and is based less than six miles away from Holbeach. The academy is freehold having previously been a foundation
school. It has a nursery on site that serves Long Sutton, a Leisure Centre and an all-weather pitch, owned by the multi-

acadcmvtmst,butleasedtoemmdbodluwlthoadmuseduﬂmihosdtoolday.uthctﬁmofmnder,m
rated it as inadequate.
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

“TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Structure, governance and management

a. CONSTITUTION

The Lincolnshire Educational Trust is a charitable company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity, The charitable
company's Memorandum and Articles of Association is the primary governing document of the academy trust. The
Trustees of The Lincolnshire Educational Trust Limited are aiso the directors of the charitable company for the
purpase of company law. The charitable company is known as The Lincolnshire Educational Trust Ltd. Details of the

Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are included in the Reference and
Administrative Details on page 1.

b, MEMBERS' LIABILITY

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contibute to the assets of the charitable company in the event
of it being wound up while they are 3 member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as
may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member.

¢. TRUSTEES' INDEMNITIES

The academy trust has, through it articles, indemnified its Trustees to the fullest extent permissable by law. During the
period the academy trust also purchased and maintained liability insurance for its Trustees.

d. METHOD OF RECRUITMENT AND APPOINTMENT OR ELECTION OF TRUSTEES

Trustees are appointed under the rules contained within the Memorandum and Articles of Association, The
appointments are made by the members.,

The membership of the Trust Board and Academy Governing Committees is in accordance with the structure
contained within its Memarandum and Articles of Association. Parents and staff are seen as key members of the local
governing committees. Trustees and Governors are selected to have a breadth of skills, which are beneficial to the
committee as a whole. The members meet two or three times each year to review the work of the Trust Board with
the Trust Board meeting at least five times each year, with one of the meetings being an away day to have wide
ranging discussions about the work of the Trust and its development. Each Academy Governing Committee meets at
least five times a year, although ad-hoc committees are used to meet specific remits, at the agreement of the Chair
and CEO. Academies at risk may have more meetings as determined by the CEO,

. POLCIES AND PROCEDURES ADOPTED FOR THE INDUCTION AND TRAINING OF TRUSTEES

The Lincolnshire Educational Trust Ltd was incorporated on 25 May 2011 and commenced operation on 1 September
2011, On 18 July 2014 it changed to become a Multi-Academy Trust (MAT). The Trust produced a very detailed
Governance Handbook for all Trustees and Governors to ensure they are fully informed on how the Trust works, its
policies and scheme of delegation. The creation of the MAT Academy Governing Committees was to oversee the
running of each academy with a key focus on monitoring children and young person's progress and well-being. The
Trust is highly committed to Trustee and Governor training and there are two compulsory training sessions for
Governors each year as well as external opportunities for training. This will Include safeguarding training for all

Trustees and Governors. Some Governors are given specific duties and all Governors are able to join any sub-
committees that are arranged.
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

The scheme of delegation sets out where the Trust set and approve policles and where Academy Governing
Committees are responsible within an academy, the Governors are provided with access to all policies, procedures
and the scheme of delegation. Where Governors have particular professional skills, the Academy seeks to support and
utilise the skill within the relevant committee, Governors are also encouraged to attend "whole school® events and,

Governing Committees to ensure we have the right balance of skills to carry out their duties. The last skiils audit was

In March 2020 and this has resulted in some minor changes to some Academy Governing Committees for the 2020/21
academic year,

f. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

The organisational structure consists of four levels of Members, Trustees/Directors, Governors and senior leadership
teams, The Trust Board publishes in July each year a handbook that sets out the full scheme of delegation as well as
the remit for each committee and the role of the executive. The aim of the organisational structure is to devolve
responsibility to the lowest level applicable and encourage involvement in decision making at all levels. During the
year no executive was a Trustee but the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Deputy Chief Executive Officer (DCEOD), Chief
Finance Officer (CFO) and Executive Principals attend board meetings. The CEO has an operations board to bring
together the work of our academies on areas like finance, HR and procurement to ensure consistency and best value
for money. Membership is made up of senior staff and Chairs of Governors. The CEO, DCEO and CFO have roles across
the academies. The Trust places great emphasis on financial probity and has had an Audit and Risk Committee with
independent members since its formation. The Trust has also created a new Nominations and Remuneration
Committee to deal with senior pay awards and appointments.

The Trustees are responsibie for setting general policy across the Trust and agreeing a clear scheme of delegation for
governors and executive staff. They set the annual budget and focus on monitoring the performance of each academy
both financially and educationally whilst ensuring compliance through monitoring reports. The Trust is keen to
strengthen staffing to manage increasing demands from Government and give it the capacity to expand when
opportunity occurs. In October 2019 the Trust recruited an Assistant Finance Manager and Compllance Officer who is

both ACCA and MAAT accredited and in February a DCEO was appointed with an impressive track record of 20 years
secondary headship,

The Executive Principals and Principals have significant powers in managing their institutions within the Trust and we
do not apply a "one sluﬁtsalt'appmachtomam.ingowsdndsuthcvmshlﬂunﬂydnforunlnm size and
needs, For example our largest academy has 1,350 on roll, growing to 1,500 in the next four years, our smallest has 62
and we have an outstanding special school with a national specialism in autism to mainstream primary and secondary
schools, The senior leadership teams are responsible for the day to day running of their academy’s and assisting in
managing the Trust. The Principals make appointments and oversee the teaching staff and teams of
administration/operational support as well as having responsibility for the academy infrastructure and leaming
environment. The structure and operation of the Trust follows the guidelines set out in the Academies Financlal
Handbook isued by the Department for Education and the Trust's own Articles of Association. In 2020 at the request

of the Regional Schools Commissioner, the Trust brought all of its funding agreements in line with the 2018 model
agreement.

The Trust uses a mixture of ways to provide key service provision based on creating best value for money. Some
external services are purchased, for example HR, grounds maintenance and health and safety, other areas we use our
own staff. Each academy also accesses a number of external agencies to enable a broader provision of educating and
learning. The external agencies include alternative education and vocational provision, careers and guidance services,
as well as a range of training providers from teaching schools and other providers.
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

The Operational Governance Framework and Scheme of Delegation

The Lincolnshire Educational Trust Limited annually reviews its governance framework and scheme of delegation
following advice from the Regional Schools Commissioner and ESFA as well as analysis of the annual Academies
Financial Handbook. The revisions are agreed by the Trust Board at its July meeting for the next financial year. The
documents are then issued to all Trustees, Governors and senior staff. It contains full detalls on remits and
responsibilities for committees, schedule of meetings with outline content, membership, as well as a full scheme of
delegation and is published on the Trust website. The Trust reserves the right to have different schemes of delegation
for each academy, however throughout 2019/20 the five academies had the same scheme of delegation to Executive

Principals but with very close monitoring of the two most recent academies to join because of the deficit budgets they
had been running.

£ ARRANGEMENTS FOR SETTING PAY AND REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
The pay policy for senior staff is now managed through the new Nominations and Remuneration Committee which

has three Trustee members being the Chair, Vice-Chair and one other who will consider the pay of the most senior
staff being the CEQ, DCEO, CFO and Executive Principals.

h. TRADE UNION FACILITY TIME

During the period the Trust had 2 (FTE: 2) relevant union officials. The percentage of their time spent on facility time
was between 1% and 50%. The cost of the facility time for these employees was £2,392 of an annual pay bill of
£16.04m, which equates to less than 0.02%. Thare were no further paid trade union activities.

I RELATED PARTIES AND OTHER CONNECTED CHARITIES AND ORGANISATIONS

The Lincolnshire Educational Trust Limited operates as a sole entity and is not part of a wider netwark or federation.
The University of Lincoln is the sole sponsor.

| ENGAGEMENT WITH EMPLOYEES (INCLUDING DISABLED PERSONS)
The Lincolnshire Educational Trust Limited understands that employees are crucial to the success of our schools and
all employees are employed on national or local authority agreed terms and conditions.

In all five of our academies we have regular team meetings and briefings Including full consultative forums for any
discussions that are of concern to employees.

Full provision is made for disabled employees. During the pandemic all staff that were unable to attend work, due to a
vuinerability in either themselves or family member, were allowed to work from home and were fully equipped to
ensure this was possible,

The Covid-19 requirements resulted in normal staff meetings being cancelled, therefore online meetings, newsletters
and other means of communication took place to ensure staff not attending the workplace remained In contact and
with full support, There were no complaints from employees during this period.

The Trustees recognise that equal opportunities should be an integral part of good practice in the workplace. The
Trust aims to provide equal opportunity in all areas of its activities including creating a working environment in which
the needs of all people are fully known, valued and understood.

Buildings will comply with all current legislation, lifts, ramps and disabled tollets will be installed and the door widths
will be adequate to enable wheelchair access to all areas of each academy. The policy of the Trust is to support special
education needs and designated special provisions. The Trust does this by adapting the physical environment by
making support resources available through training and career development.
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

k. ENGAGEMENT WITH SUPPLIERS, CUSTOMERS AND OTHERS IN A BUSINESS RELATIONSHIP WITH THE TRUST

The Uincolnshire Educational Trust Limited has a wide range of suppliers ranging from companies who are building a
newsdenoeblocktosd\oolmupmw.hmhmmhtuwhswchuﬂn.mmwa
tendering process, provide the HR services to local companies who provide grounds maintenance.

The constant search for value for money means tendering is a normal way in which we work with companies, however
quality of service is vital and where able support is given to local services. The Trust have excellent relationships with a
large range of local companies as the apprenticeship scheme runs across 3 wide range of activities.

Objectives and Activities
a. OBIECTS AND AIMS

TMTfusthadadmlledmhwofltsmosandmrﬂcuhmlntentmdthnmmharevkcdmiuion, values
and @ new section related to curriculum intent. The Trust has also developed its approach to continuous
improvement. The object of the charity is to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in
particular but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing
and developing academies which offer a broad curriculum,

Our misslon Is to develop academies that are schools of first choice through their high aspirations and educational
excellence, The academies will improve the life chances of young people through the development of their academic,
cultural and sporting achievements, enhancing their personal development and enabling them to become confident
life-long learners who are able to successfully contribute to the world in which they live.

b. OBJECTIVES, STRATEGIES AND ACTIVITIES

Values

Maximising the potential of every child and young person.

Providing a safe and secure environment for learning and teaching,

Promoting well-being: physical, emotional and mental.

Caring for the environment in which we learn and live,

Supporting parents and carers to participate in their children's learning.
Nurturing and developing excellent staff to help us achieve our misison.
Fostering a positive learning culture that is aspirational, ambitious and innovative.
Working in partnership to achieve our goals,

Upholding exemplary behaviour that is respectful and caring.

Making education enjoyable and celebrating every young person's achievements.

Curriculum Intent

* Create a curriculum which embeds the mission and values of the Trust, yet is crafted in a manner that
meets the distinctive needs of each community and all the stakeholders in each academy,

. Mcwrmmmdtwlthmwmmmmmd skills necessary to equip them for
life, bullding their cultural capital so that they are knowledgeable about a wide range of cultures and have
access to a broad range of experiences to deploy during thelr life.

* Consult reeuhrlywkhpanms,cammdmpeopbonmdrmmcmlunneedswmmwehavethc
right balance of provision which is broad and balanced, recognising that our young people learn In
different ways and have different needs and interests.

*  Ensure there are different pathways to learning, yet guaranteeing equal opportunity for all young people.

¢ Prioritise learning in communication, literacy and numeracy for every young person.

Page 6



THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

¢ Develop skills and knowledge that enable young people to be confident and healthy citizens in the digital
world.

¢ Provide opportunities for developing interest and talent in sports, music and creative arts.

¢ Promote learning, on occasions outside the classroom, which develops resitience and self-worth.

¢ Build knowledge, skills and understanding in 3 way that engages and inspires young people in an
Intelligent, logical and sequential manner.

* Celebrating success at all levels to help build confidence and help create and develop confident and
ambitious young people.

Our approach to continuous improvement In our academies is based on five tenets:

1. Setting high aspirations for every learner in all aspects of academy life.

2. Knowing every learner and designing support and encouragement in a manner that ensures each can
grow and know they can achieve in a safe environment.

3. Providing inspirational teaching by high quality staff that embeds literacy and numeracy in the curriculum,
whilst providing a broad and diverse curriculum that captivates children and young people so they
become lifelong learners, as well as accelerating the learning of disadvantaged students.

4. Maximising and celebrating every learner’s achlevements and progress through high quality teaching and
support.

5. Promoting exemplary behaviour that is characterised by a respectful and caring environment, where rules
are understood and accepted.

¢. PUBLIC BENEFIT

The Trust provides educational services to all children in the local area. The Trustees confirm that they have complied

with the duty in Section 4 of the Charities Act 2006 to have due regard to the public benefit guidance provided by the
Charity Commission.

Strategic report

2. ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE

This year has been very successful in that all our academies were making excellent progress during the year and the
Trust was particularly delighted at the progress made in both our sponsored academies. It was extremely
disappointing that our academies were unable to display that progress in a statistical form as the tests and
examinations were cancelled. The Trust was highly successful in the outstanding way In which our academies
supported pupils and their families throughout the second half of the academic year meeting all the challenges of the
Covid-19 pandemic in a positive and constructive manner. The Trust is very proud of its staff and their commitment to
supporting their pupils and the wider community,

The Covid-19 pandemic had a major Impact on all aspects of life in and around our academies, including our pupils,
staff and parents/carers. The Trust Board formally resolved that managing the pandemic was an executive function
managed by the CEO and his staff, keeping the Trust Board and Governors informed and seeking advice as needed.
The senior executive staff appreciated the vote of confidence in them and It allowed for quick decisions to be made.
All Trust Board meetings were held virtually and only one Governors meeting was cancelled.
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Our first objective was to determine what approach the Trust was going to take during the lockdown. Our key aim was
to support our vuinerable children and key workers' children. Many key workers in the area work in the food
manufacturing industries and on shift work so helping them was crucial. A detailed analysis of the logistics were
carried out when the lockdown was announced and the executive decided, endorsed by the Trust Board, to close the
with that dedision and their children would be supported from HPA. This resulted in us being able to provide a
comprehensive service for all those children. A second objective was to maintain very good communication will all our
families and with all our staff. Our four academies (UAH,UALS,HPA and GHA) all remained open until 1 June 2020,
throughout holiday periods and even bank holidays. The Trust used a broad interpretation of who was a key worker
and contact with vulnerable children was a crucial aspect of our work. This absorbed very significant resources and in
some cases pupils were contacted three times during the week to ensure thelr safety, The Trust established a Covid-
19 specific risk assessment with related party action plan for each academy. This was updated on a regular basis.

On the 1 June 2020 HBA reopened as all our academies followed the Governments guidance on reopening. For those
remaining at home the staff enhanced the provision and in secondary more online lessons were conducted using the
new computers and tablets we had purchased. Once the Government announced at the beginning of July the full
reopcnln(ofallschoolslnsmombtr,mqmmbmnmdonmwmdﬂcmkmmnndmlm
plans for each academy. The Trust provided a common structure for these risk assessments and they were all
completed by mid-August and published on each academy website. This, along with information including booklets
and leaflets and a comprehensive information campaign, was instrumental in helping our academies open successfully
with very high attendance at the start of the autumn term.

One key aspect of this period from 23 March 2020 to the end of the summer term was the Increasing need to provide
learning at home as well as in school. Increasingly over the period staff developed their skills and the Trust invested in
new technology such as computers and tablets for teaching online. There was a significant amount of training carried
out to ensure the effective use of some of these new technologies. Our primary schools used their websites and
posted out every two weeks packs of materials to support learning combined with activities which they could enjoy. In
addlﬁon,awvmuwchumdwsmﬂuovﬂlmbrpuplsmﬂwnmmdmdmbyedbvpupllsmd
parents/carers. Parents were highly supportive of our approach, so much so that the academies even provided
additional packs during the summer holidays. Our special academy developed specific programmes on an individual
basis and had an almost constant dialogue using its home-school software. Our secondary academies continued to
use their VLE and supplemented this with one-to-one tutorials and online lessons. The lack of suitable technology or
internet connectivity in a significant number of homes was a major concern and eventually the DfE scheme provided
over 80 pleces of equipment, which certainly helped support those disadvantaged students. The Trust Invested in a
significant number of tablet computers to enable more interactive online lessons and these proved very valuable in
improving the online learning as the period of partial closure was extended.

There were some savings due to the Covid-19 pandemic, but also some additional costs, The Trust was disappointed
initially as it appeared the Government would meet a lot of the additional costs, however subsequent experience
appears that they will not meet these costs. Aspects such as examination fees refunds have been very poor and costs
of PPE, hand sanitiser, signage, telephone bills, extra staff cleaning, new washing facilities and new covered external
areas have increased the costs. There were some savings on staff training, supply costs and utilities, but this was not
as much as expected due to the additional opening during the holiday periods.
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

The Trust, through careful management of the Covid-19 pandemic, has limited the financial risk to the Trust, but in
the next financial year costs are likely to increase and need to be absorbed in the Trust, as the government expects us
to use reserves to meet these costs. Throughout this peried all academies had a no visitor policy, except by approval
of the Princlpal. Those volunteers who, on occasions, helped, were not used. The Trust has limited income from
external sources and fundraising and these losses were absorbed.

The impact on staff of the Covid-19 pandemic has been manageable, but the demands on staff, particularly senior
staff, has been very significant and this demanding workload continues. This has not been helped by the Governments
constant changing guidance and demands. It is too soon to give a comprehensive answer on the impact on our puplis,

the early indication is that they were delighted to be back in school and enthusiastic to renew their learning and meet
their friends and teachers,

The risks to the Trust and its staff and pupils are clearly significant but our detailed risk assessments have been well
received by all parties and no group has challenged the Trust or any of its individuals about the actions that have been
taken. The Governments directive means that the Trust must be open and it has to absorb the risks and our staff are
doing everything they can to mitigate the risks.

The economic crisis resulting from the Covid-19 pandemic clearly will impact on the Local Government Pension
Scheme but that is beyond our control and our investments are very low risk so the Trust believes the risks in this area
are manageable. In this financial year the Covid-19 pandemic has had no serious impact on our reserves, however the

Trust does expect, if the virus continues, it will impact on our reserves as the Government has made it clear additional
costs will have to be met from existing budgets,

The Trust has aspirations to expand and the Members have commissioned an external review to determine our future
strategy for growth. This is looking at the structure of the Trust, its ethos and vision for growth, structures and
rationale for future growth. An action plan will be created in 2020/21 to develop a clear strategy for growth. The
pandemic has halted any plans for expansion and this may delay our plans further. This means the careful
management of our infrastructural costs will be important during this challenging period,

The Trust advertised nationally to appoint a DCEO in February, The successful candidate was the Executive Principal of
UAH and UALS, The new DCEO has 20 years of successful headship experience and will continue to lead UAH and

UALS, who have 86% of our pupils, and take on additional responsibilities once we can move back to normal
operations.

The new Principal at UAH, former Vice Principal at UAH, has settled into her new post extremely well and has created
a strong leadership team. UAH received funding to expand its Published Admission Number (PAN) from 180 to 240 for
September 2020 and it has recruited well to fill those positions. The new £1.64m science block was delayed slightly by
the Covid-19 pandemic but will be availble by the autumn term,

The new Principal at UALS, former Assistant Principal at UAH, has made a very good start and transformed the culture
and ethos of UALS. In September 2019 the academy took Its largest year 7 intake ever, 20 above its PAN, and again in
2020 it has recruited over PAN. The academy in September 2020 will have Its highest number of children ever which is
testimony to the academys’ growing reputation based on what parents and pupils can see,
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

All the evidence In mid-March was that the Trust was going to have its best results ever. The progress at UALS and
HBA demostrated very significant improvement helped by the staffing changes the Trust has made and improved
resources for learning. Significant environmental changes have taken place at UALS, but more are urgently required
and the Trust is working to seek resources to make those changes. The Covid-19 pandemic had impacted on the

In People aware and gained Condition Improvement Funding (CIF) for replacement of their boiler, which was
completed before the end of the summer holidays.

The Covid-19 pandemic and cancellation of testing and examinations means our academies were unable to
demonstrate their improvement through external verification. Students gained their teacher assessments following
the disorganised management of the GCE Advanced Level, BTEC and GCSE examinations. The preparation of material
anddmformcnminationboudsmlhmtukmdbomUAHu\dUM.Stookonrypfohdomlappmdn,thu
was particularly difficult for UALS due to its previous results, but with staff knowing that our students had worked
extremely hard and the results would have been very good in 2020. The Government was very clear it wanted in-
depth standardisation of the teachers' assessment and also wanted previous performance of schools to be taken into
account. Staff applied the utmost integrity to grading our students with cross moderation between academies with

strict oversight. The Trust was satisfied with its own performance, but disappointed to see that not all schools showed
the same levels of integrity.

me'l’rustwudolghhdﬂmaﬂ“m«\udmdmnummmplhdmmmmmmwﬂmm
and 8 students are taking up places at the University of Lincoln on 2 wide variety of courses.

The Trust also produced a comprehensive new handbook that sets out our governance structure, ethos and the terms
of reference for all of our committees. In addition we have set out the service provision we provide for all of our
academies and the full scheme of delegation. The Trust website has also been fully redesigned.

b. MAJOR STRATEGIC CHALLENGES

The Lincoinshire Educational Trust Limited had the aim in 2019/20 to make the necessary changes to the two
sponsored academies and to consolidate the work in our other academies, At the same time we are looking to expand
the Trust, and that is why the Members commissioned a strategic review to establish the fitness for expanson of the
Trust, but aiso to create a road map to achieve such objectives. This report is due to be finalised in December 2020.

The Trust is also aware that some of its buildings are in need of repair or replacement and over the next 12 months
the executive staff are going to focus on seeking funding to address this area of need.

Thonsthllllsomktobuildapadtywemuummkamhmnsiﬁonamﬁuﬂreormmmehust

has proved to have very sound succession planning in terms of school improvement and needs to consider this in
administrative positions.

Lincolnshire County Council has a strategy for special education, called Bullding Communities of Specialist Provision
furamdnnandYommmwsdmwmmmmmmmm.nnmmedms
strategy Is that GHA will become an all-needs special school rather than its current specialism in autism. The Trust

support this strategy and is awaiting the decision by Lincolnshire County Council to develop new facilities to enable
GHA to meet the needs of all puplls.
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

€. KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The extraordinary events of 2019/20 with the Covid-19 pandemic set some new challenges and indirectly we
established some objectives for the Trust. The key objectives were to support the Government throughout the
pandemic by keeping our schools open, even on bank holidays, and supporting key workers and vulnerable children.

Shortly after lockdown it became a key priority to develop further our support for learning at home and it was also
achieved as described previously In the strategic report,

On the 31 August 2020 we are delighted to report all five academies in the Trust have a sound and comprehensive
curriculum appropriate to the needs of the young people. They are all fully staffed for the 2020/21 academic year
with very good leadership teams. As a Trust we placed great emphasis on Child Protection and Safeguarding, using
Uincolnshire County Council Policies, Processes and Procedures. The Trust Board have a dedicated Trustee for
safeguarding and all academies have dedicated governors, specialist staff and dedicated training on an annual basis.

The Trust had no formal complaints in 2019/20 that were escalated to the Trust Board.

d. GOING CONCERN
After making appropriate enguiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Trust has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeabie future. For this reason it continues to adopt the

Boing concern basis in preparing the financial statements, Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern
basis can be found in the Accounting Policies.

¢, PROMOTING THE SUCCESS OF THE COMPANY
It was and remains of key importance to promote the academies in the Trust to ensure that pupll numbers continue

to be maintained or grow. This is achieved through our websites, which include virtual tours of the academies, short
talks from the Principal and staff as well as the pupils.

Brochures are produced and circulated as well as advertising in local nespapers. Normally there is an opportunity to

visit the academies or attend open evenings, but these are no longer possible during the Covid-19 pandemic, thus our
use of virtual experiences for future reference,

Financial Review

In all of our expenditure the CEQ, DCEOD, CFO and Executive Princlpals and their staff, including the Finance Managers,
have sought best value for money and question choices and options made. The Trust has an operations board that
meets six times a year and seeks to coordinate all our services. The last two meetings of this committee were
cancelled due to the pandemic and the senior executive team carried out the work. The Trust uses tendered
outsourced services for a number of its functions with all contract renewals reviewed to seek the best value, Most
contracts run across the whole Trust, although as new academies join the Trust there is some phased integration. The
Audit and Risk Committee has reviewed the financial regulations and policy as well as the treasury policy in light of

changes to the governance structure and the Trusts increased size and made the adjustments that the Trust Board has
agreed,

The majority of the academy's income derives from central Government funding via the Education Skills Funding
Agency (ESFA). The academies aiso received pupll premium and local authority funding to support special educational
needs, designated special provision and capital funds towards fixtures, fittings and equipment. In addition, UAH raises
funds from the ESFA through its expertise in apprenticeships and use of its facilities. GHA receives funding from
Lincolnshire County Council for the delivery of the council's autism outreach programme. UAH was also in receipt of
funding from Lincolnshire County Council for the new science block so it can expand its PAN to 240. The new build

started In January 2020, but was impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic and as such will not be completed until the
autumn term,
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

In the financlal year we had significant additional costs related to the Covid-19 pandemic estimated to be around
£80,500, we have entered claims amounting to £33,783 and have been notified that we will receive £11,188 of this
amount with the remainder being subject to further ESFA approval. Some minor savings were made during the period,
but these were offset by having the academies open during the holiday periods with extra cleaning and costs which

not 2ll as far as we are aware.

The deficit generated during the year in restricted general funds (excluding pension) and unrestricted funds was
£490,323. During the year ended 31 August 2020 the total operating expenditure of £19.44m was covered by grant
funding and other incoming resources. Each academy managed its budget within it agreed budget set at the start of
the financial year. In light of the challenging outlook for funding education in the next few years, the Trust has
determined that all academies must set at least a balanced budget. In 2018/19 we received grants from Lincolnshire
County Council and the Reglonal Schools Commissioner and these are held in the Trusts central account, but will be
spentoverthonuuwomthuemrs.Thedcﬁdtdimcmmndtmc(m’udimmedusetmmd
pension actuarial adjustments) was £0.16m. The central charges for central contracts are charged directly to each
academy based on the contracting formulae, as are staff who work across academies such as the Finance Manager,
The costs of the CEO and CFO who remain central contracted are 0.38% of total expenditure.

At 31 August 2020 the net current assets were £2.34m and the net book value of tangible fixed assets was £16.45m.

The assets were used exclusively for providing education and the associated support services to the learners of the
academles,

There is a declared deficit on the defined benefit pension scheme, Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for
associated staff, Arguably a similar liability would exist for teachers if measured by the same method. Whilst the value

is significant, the Trustees do not believe the liability represents a material risk because the liability would be spread
over medium to long term, which would minimise its impact.

The Chair of the Trust receives the management accounts on a monthly basis, and all Trustees will received them ona
bi-monthly basis. They will also be an item on all Trust Board agendas.

a. RESERVES POLICY
The Trust holds total funds of £11.32m. Of this sum £1.92m are restricted revenue funds, £16.45m relates to the value

of fixed assets and as such, would be available only by the disposal of tangible fixed assets, and (£7.47m) relates to
the value of the LGPS deficit. Unrestricted revenue funds total £0.42m.

It is the Trust's aim to keep the reserves so there is substantially more than one month's salary cost on hand in cash

formatmypolnt.Aanhﬁowfommispmvided.ashlsmonlmndonldd'ybnlsandmeyhlmdon
deposit where appropriate.

As at 31 August 2020, £19,789 was held by the Trust in relation to bursary funding recelved for students.

b. INVESTMENT POLICY

The Trustees' policy is to retain the investment property long term in order to generate income from lettings. It is the
intention to invest any surplus funds in low risk risk short-term bank deposits.
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

€. PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The Trustees consider that the principal risks and uncertainties facing each established academy are:
1. Meeting requisite standards of education for students in core subjects.
Managing a pandemic in a high risk environment.
Failure to have adequate risk assessments and controls in place.
Complying with legislative requirements regarding employment law, GDPR, discrimination, Companies
House and HMRC, safeguarding and child protection, gender pay gap reporting, the Charity Commission
and the regulations related to the curriculum,
5. Financial risk - not operating within its budget and running a deficit, changes in funding, inappropriate or
insufficient financial controls and systems, fraudulent activity and or financial commitments made without
adequate authorisation.
Operational risks resulting from inexperienced or inappropriate staff being employed and inaccurate, out
of date or inappropriate information,
Inadequate buildings or environmental systems that can lead to school closure.
Fallure to recruit sufficient pupils to make any academy viable.
Losing high quality experienced staff,
10. Maving adverse publicity from an Ofsted inspection or other major incident,
11. Fallure of the academy IT systems.
12. Expanding of the Trust without the skill or manpower to accommodate such growth.
13. Failure to set in place adequate succession planning.

& wn
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The key controls used by the Trust Include:
1. Detailed terms of reference for all committees.
Formal agendas for the Trust and academies board and committees.
Schemes of delegation and formal financlal regulations,
Formal written policies.
Clear authorisation and approval levels,
Policies and procedures required by law to protect the vulnerable,
Regular training of all staff.

NOw e wN

Most of the Trust's income is obtained from the DIE in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to
particular purposes in pursuance of the Trust's objects, The grants received from the DfE during the peiod ended 31

August 2020 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted general funds in the Statement of Financial
Activities,

Risk management

Risk management has always been a key feature of the Trust with risk assessments for the Trust and each academy
being scrutinised by the audit and risk committee on an annual basis, In addition, business continuity plans are in
place for each establishment to ensure we have a support system if failures take place. This year Covid-19 specific risk
assessments were set up initially for the whole Trust and then in July for each academy to ensure they were fit for
purpose. The Trustees, CEO, DCED, CFO, Executive Principals and Governors have assessed the major risks to which

the Trust is exposed, in particular those relating to the specific teaching, provision of facllities and other operational
areas of the academy and its finances,
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

The Principals have implemented a number of systems to assess the risks that the academy faces, especially in the
operational areas (e.g. in relation to teaching, health and safety, bullying, school trips etc.) and In relation to the
control of finance. They have introduced systems, including operational procedures such as vetting of new staff,

supervision of school buildings and grounds, as well as an effective system of internal financial control in order to
e minimise risks:

Risks to the Trust fall into the following categories:

1. Financial - Income to the Trust is always predicted prudently and expenditure plans zre controlled by a
strong committee structure. The Principals are accountable to the committee for restricting expenditure
within budget limits.

2. Performance - A decline in results would lead to a less favourable reputation, which would, in turn, lead to
fewer numbers of students with the subsequent loss of income. The Principals are accountable to the
governing body for academic results,

3. Compliance with statutory and regularity requirements - To support the Trust we now have 2 compliance
officer.

4. Health and Safety - A range of risk assessments, including actions to be taken in the event of extreme
Incidents, have been written. These are reviewed annually.

S. Operational - These risks are minimised by employment of high quality staff who are well trained and
constantly updated, standard operating procedures linked ot best practice are adopted and a review and
improve strategy Is part of the Trusts culture.

Eundraising

The Trust does not participate In fundraising to subsidise our educational provision. A small amount of fundraising is
undertaken in the form of speclal events, such as non-uniform days to collect for various selected charities during the
year, which are paid across to the charities after collection. The academy trust does not use any external fundraisers.
All fundraising undertaken during the year was monitored by Trustees.

Plans for future periods

ThaMombmhmcommlaiomdanpononthemwndtvdopmentofmeTrunfromaconsultam.'l'hlsnportwil
be presented to the Trust Board in the autumn term after six months research.

The key plan is to ensure when inspected that both HBA and UALS have good inspections which will demonstrate the
Trust has the capacity to significantly improve both primary and secondary schools.

Ambitious targets are set for pupil attainment and progress in each academy. There will be a continuing emphasis on
strategies to Improve performance of the pupils receiving pupil premium and also high attaining puplls, being
implemented through careful analysis of pupil performance data. A key piece of work developed during the partial
closure was the work on supporting learning at home.

The emphasis on reading will be maintained as will all academy activities. There are plans to further enhance arts,
cultural, music and sportin activities, including the use of sports premium funding In our primary academies.

Further resources will be directed towards CPD (Continuing Professional Development) to continue the drive to
improve teaching and learning. The academies will seek to work more closely together sharing where appropriate
expertise and will all work with our sponsor the University of Lincoln to enhance our provision. Each academy will
mmmwmmmmnnwmm&jmwmmnbutpnaleeluchlmd.
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED

(A company limited by guarantee)
TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020
Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

UK Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use data for the period 1
September 2019 to 31 August 2020
Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh) 3,068,881
Energy consumption breakdown (kWh)

* Gas 1,992,537

* Electricity 1,006,043

* Transport fuel 70,301
Scope 1 emissions In metric tonnes CO,e
Gas consumption 366.37
Owned transport - mini-buses 3.70
Total scope 1 370.07 |
Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes CO,0
Purchased electricity 234.55
Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes CO,e
Business travel in employee owned vehicles 13.45
Total gross emissions in metric t COue 618.07
Intensity ratio
Tonnes COye per pupil 0.26

Quantification and reporting methodology:-

*  We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have
also used the GHG Reporting Protocol - Corporate Standard and have used the 2020 UK

Government's Conversion Factors for Company Reporting,

Intensity measurement

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emision In metric tonnes COe per pupll, the

recommended ratio for the sector.

Measures taken to improve energy efficiency

The Trust has taken the action to install LED lighting on replacement of current light fittings across all
sites where possible and, led in some part by the Covid-19 pandemic, video conferencing technology is
now used for all meetings across the Trust where possible including Governing committees, Trust Board,

Audit and Risk Committee etc. which results in a reduction in travel between sites.
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

In so far as the Trustees are aware:
* There is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware, and

- mevnmmnnmucmmmwmmmwmmnmmm
audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The Trustees' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the board of trustees, as the company
directors, on .\ ReS@~we, 2e3C2.... and signed on its behalf by:

] Y e

;vfeuot A Hunter
Chair of Trustees
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The Lincoinshire Educational Trust
Limited has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However such a system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and competency
framework for governance,

The board of trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to Mr A Breckon as CEO and Accounting Officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financlal management and In
accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between the
Lincolnshire Educational Trust Limited and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for
reporting to the board of trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

During the Covid-19 pandemic and resulting partial closure of our academies, the board of trustees gave full executive
power to the CEO to take actions necessary to meet Government requirements and related health and safety Issues.

The board of trustees and Members were delighted with the way the executive managed this demanding period and
greatly appreciated the support from our staff.

GOVERNANCE

The members met on five occasions during the year with one occasion being a full day meeting when In depth debate
took place.

The information on governance included here supplements that described In the Trustees' report and in the
Statement of Trustees' responsibilities. To maintain effective oversight the senior officers provide monthly briefings to

the Trust Board and the CEO gives regular feedback to the chair. Attendance during the year at meetings of the board
of trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Qut of a possible
Prof T Wilkinson S 5
Prof V Braybrooks 4 S
Dr E Libbey q 5
Mr A Robinson 2 5
Ms M Allison a 4
Mr K Batty 5 5
Prof | Abrahams 1 3
Mr W Naylor 5 S
Prof D French 2 2
Prof S Davidson .
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

GOVERNANCE REVIEWS
n\eboardofmmmandrapondtoanyuﬁrdponymdmmmreqummmu.mmrdof
trustees is aware of thelr responsibility to consider laws and regulations, finance systems and controls and also
community reponsibility. The board is aware of the requirement to ensure the work of the board is effective.

The audit and risk committee is a sub-committee of the main board of trustees. Its purpose is to review and control
the financial performance of the Trust. There were three meetings of the Audit Committee during the year.

Members of the Audit and Risk Committee and their attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Meetings attended Out of a possible
Prof V Braybrooks (Chair and Trustee)

Dr E Libbey (Trustee)

Mr K Batty (Trustee)

Mr D Braham (Independent Member)
Ms D Hall (Independent Member)

N WwNWw
wwwww

The CEQ, CFO and Finance Manager were in attendance at ali Audit and Risk Committee meetings.

REVIEW OF VALUE FOR MONEY

As accounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good

value in the use of public resources. The acounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational
and wider socletal outcomes achleved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the academy trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money

during each academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where vaiue for money can be improved, Including
the use of benchmarking data where appropriate.

The Lincolnshire Educational Trust Limited is fully committed to seeking best value for money; from investing in the
future in a new infrastructure and educational experiences to ensuring every child and young person can fulfil their
potential. Wemwalh;lookatmryaomnctandmmecstnluefwmalwppllerundthlshnowpmofour
standard operating procedures across the Trust.

meTrunhmhdlmnhuMedmmdwufwmmymmmln 2019/20 with the provision of a
broad, wide ranging curriculum in all academies and very significant extracurricular activities is what we aim to offer
and that has been achieved with good results in all of our academies. The investment in Saturday workshops and
holiday tuition has been very well received by students at UAH and the Impact is significant. The academies work very
closely together and expertise is shared and in 2015/20 the University of Lincoln is providing support in the arts and
with teacher recruitment and initial teacher training and at GHA there has been significant research carried out at
post graduate level, a feature we hope to expand.

The Trust takes a top slice ofo.ssudtmno\mtohmdﬂaeCEOandCFOmlelntheTnmde-«webellmlsﬁm
class value for money as both of these positions are held by very experienced personnel. In 2018/19 the CEO costs
increased because of the work related to the sponsored Academies. Part of that cost has been offset from the grant
for sponsorship of Holbeach Bank Academy and the Peele Community College. The Trust is very keen to ensure a very
efficient and effective infrastructure supports its academies but maximum resources are spent on teaching and
learning. The Trust will continue to seek best value whenever it €an to ensure maximum resources are available to
support the learning of pupils in the academies.
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
of effectiveness, The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the
risks to the achlevement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being
realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The
system of internal control has been in place in The Lincolnshire Educational Trust Limited for the period 1 September
2019 to 31 August 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISK

The board of trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together with the operating, financial
and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of trustees is of the view that
there Is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the academy trust's significant risks that
has been in place for the pericd 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual
report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of trustees.

THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The academy trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information
and administrative procedures Including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In
particular, it includes:
* Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees.
*  Regular reviews by the Trust Board of reports which indicate financlal performance against the forecasts
and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes.
*  Setting targets to measure financial and other performance.,
¢ Clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines,
+ |dentification and management of risks.

The board of trustees has decided to employ Forrester Boyd as an internal auditor for the 2020/21 financial year, For
the 2019/20 period internal assurance was provided by Duncan & Toplis as an extension to their external audit. They

have concluded their existing engagement, and can no longer fulfil the requirement due to being the academy trusts
external auditor.

The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing 2 range of checks on the
academy trust's financial and other systems. In particular, the checks carried out In the current period included:

*  Testing of payroll systems

* Testing of purchase systems

*  Testing of control accounts/bank reconciliations

* Testing of tangible fixed assets

*  Testing of general compliance issues e.g. website, Health and Safety

On a quarterly basis, the internal auditor reports to the board of trustees, through the audit committee on the
operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the board of trustees’ financial responsibilities and
annually prepares an annual summary report to the committee outlining the areas reviewed, key findings,
recommendations and conclusions to help the committee consider actions to assess year on year progress.
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS
As accounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internzl control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:
* The work of the internal auditor.
= The work of the-extermnat-auditor. — e ————— —
*  The financial management and governance self-assessment process or the school resource management
self-assessment tool.
The work of the executive managers within the academy trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework.
The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal

control by the audit and risk committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the
system is in place.

Approved b} order of the members of the board of trustees on .\ Deorleer 2@ 26 and signed on its behalf by:
S

= l‘( /Z/(//"
“Professor A Hunter Mr A Bgeckofi
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As Accounting Officer of The Lincolnshire Educational Trust Limited | have considered my responsibility to notify the
academy trust board of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the academy trust, under the
funding agreement in place between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my
consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2019,

| confirm that | and the academy trust board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of
funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the academy
trust’s funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2019,

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to
date. If any Instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of trustees and
ESFA.

bt

Accounting Officer

oate: . LR R,
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

The Trustees (who are the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for
preparing the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction
published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Xingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.
Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law the
Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they glve 2 true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its
income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:
*  Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
* Observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2019 to 2020.
Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent.
¢ State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements,
¢ Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financlal position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial
and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They
are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DFE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on
the charitable company's website, Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by the order of the members of the board of trustees on N Pecerr 2030 . and signed on its behalf
by: ' g

y. il

* Professor A Hunter
Chair of Trustees
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of The Lincolnshire Educational Trust Limited (the 'Academy’) for the year
ended 31 August 2020 which comprise the Statement of financial activities incorporation income and expenditure
account, the Balance sheet, the Statement of cash flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant
accounting policies, The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law,
United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financlal
Reporting Standard 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland’, the Charities
SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the Education & SKills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

* Give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy’s affairs as at 31 August 2020 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

¢ Have been properly prepared In accordance with the United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

* Have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the Education & Skills Funding
Agency.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISA’s (UK)) and applicable law.
Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described In the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Academy In accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, Including the Financial
Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these

requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISA's (UK) require us to report
to you where:

¢ The Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
not appropriate; or

« The Trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt about the Academy's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of

accounting for 3 period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

e eeeeeeeeeeee—————————————
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED

OTHER INFORMATION

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other Information comprises the information included In
the Annual mpun, other than the financial statements and our Auditors’' npon thereon. Our oplnlon on the finandal

mdonotumanyfomofmunnoeoomlmbnﬁum
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financlal statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is & material
misstatement in the financial statements or 3 material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work

we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstaternent of this other information, we are required to
report that fact,

We have nothing to report in this regard,
OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

* The information given in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared s consistent with the financial statements,

* The Trustees' report and the Strategic report have been prepared In accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE RQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy and Its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees’ report including the Strategic report.

We have nothing to report In respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report to you if, In our opinion:

* Adequate accounting recards have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
recelved from branches not visited by us; or

*  The financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
*  Certain disclosures of Trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

¢ We have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED

RESPONSIBILITIES OF TRUSTEES

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees’ responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also directors of the
Academy for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary

10 enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error,

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy's ability to continue as a
ROINg concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so,

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' report that includes our opinion,
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance with
ISA’s (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and

are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our Auditors’
report.

USE OF OUR REPORT

This report is made solely to the Academy’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors’ report and for no other purpose, To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy and its members, as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed,

Alistair Main FCA (Senior Statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of

Duncan & Toplis Limited

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
15 Chequergate

Louth

Lincolnshire

IN110U
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO
THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter date 1 August 2019 and further to the requirements of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020, we have
carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income
received by The Lincolnshire Educational Trust Limited during the yvear 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have

govern them.

This report is made solely to The Lincolnshire Educational Trust Umited and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of
our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to The Lincolnshire Educational Trust
Limited and the ESFAthoammwemmwkedtomhamponmdbtmom«purpmfommum
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than The Lincolnshire Educational
Trust Limited and the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED'S ACCOUNTING OFFICER AND
THE REPORTING ACCOUNTANT

The Accounting Officer Is responsible, under the requirements of The Lincolnshire Educational Trust Limited's funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 September 2012, and the Academies Financlal
Handbook, extant from 1 September 2019, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and Income received is applied for
the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance
are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the
AudmnmmbhcﬁonNISMNZQWQmmmmMImhsumwwmmin
carrying out our work which suggests that In all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during
the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parllament or that the
financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them,

APPROACH

Waconducudourewmmhmdammmwtmismummzomwmmmu by the
ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter,

The objective of a limited assurance enagement is to perform such procedures as to obtaln information and
uplanaﬂomhmdnupmﬂdcu%wﬂkﬁnnmyﬂmwﬂnmmmmanmtlveoooduﬂonon
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than 2 reasonable assurance engagement and consequently
does not enable us to obtain ammthtmmldm:mdwwmmmul«nﬁﬂed
in a reasonable assurance engagement, Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basls, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy's income and expenditure.
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h
INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO

THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

CONCLUSION

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all materlal respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have not been

applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them,

Alistair Main FCA

Duncan & Toplis Limited

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
15 Chequergate

Louth

Lincoinshire

IN110U
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

e —

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

INCOME FROM:

Donations and capital grants
Charitable activities

Other trading activities
Investments

Transfer on conversion
TOTAL INCOME

EXPENDITURE ON:
Charitable activities
TOTAL EXPENDITURE

NET INCOME/(EXPENDITURE)
BEFORE TRANSFERS
Transfers between funds

NET INCOME/EXPENDITURE
BEFORE OTHER RECOGNISED
GAINS AND LOSSES

Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined
benefit pension schemes

NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS:
Total funds brought forward

Note

wm s wN

18

25

TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD

Restricted

Unrestricted  Restricted fixed asset Total Total

funds funds funds funds funds

2020 2020 2020 2020 2019
— f— £ T —— —

- 31,516 1,683,015 1,714,531 142,166

16,584,145 - 16,584,145 14,379,799

233,675 502,568 - 736,243 840,279

5,146 . - 5,146 7,239

. - 6,060,000

242,927 18,679,148

24&927 18,679,148 520,755 19:42,830 14#7&405

38,821 17,118,229

520,755

1,683,015 19,040,065

2 2 21,429,483

19,442,830

14,474,405

(4,106) (1,560,919) 1,162,260  (402,765) 6,955,078

- (333,298) 333,298 - .
(4,106) (1,894,217) 1,495,558  (402,765) 6,955,078

- (195,000) - (195,000)  (1,493,000)
(4,106) (2,089,217) 1,495,558  (597,765) 5,462,078
426,925 (3,464,423) 14,957,759 11,920,261 6,458,183
422,819 (5,553,640) 16,453,317 11,322,496 11,920‘261
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED

(A company limited by guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07647805
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2020
2020 2019
Note £ £ £ £
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 14 16,453,317 14,957,759
CURRENT ASSETS
Stock 15 42,392 42,561
Debtors 16 1,308,866 518,197
Cash at bank and in hand 1,990,438 3,260,739
3,341,696 3,821,497
CREDITORS: amounts falling due within one
year 17 998,517) (987,995!
NET CURRENT ASSETS 2,343,179 2,833,502
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 18,796,496 17,791,261
CREDITORS: amounts falling due after more
than one year . .
NET ASSETS EXCLUDING PENSION SCHEME LIABILITIES 18,796,496 17,791,261
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 25 (7,474,000) (5,871,000)
NET ASSETS INCLUDING PENSION SCHEME LIABILITIES 11,322,496 11,920,261
—_— —_—
FUNDS OF THE TRUST
Restricted income funds
Restricted income funds 18 1,920,360 2,406,577
Restricted fixed asset funds 18 16,453,317 14,957,759
Restricted funds excluding pension scheme liability 18,373,677 17,364,336
Pension reserve (7,474,000) (5,871,000)
Total restricted funds 10,899,677 11,493,336
Unrestricted income funds 18 422,819 426,925
TOTAL 1 1,322E496 15‘920‘261

The financial statements on pages 28 to 54 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue, on
V. Bacon\aer 4= and are signed on their behalf, by:
—
"Prof A Hunter
Chair of Trustees
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

T
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

2020 2019
Note £ £

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities 21 (942,149) 8,016,839
Cash flows from investing activities 2 (328,152) (6,509,326)
Change In cash and cash equivalents in the Year Ji2m030n) " 1,507,513
Cash and cash equivalents brought forward 3,260,739 1,753,226
Cash and cash equivalents carried forward 23/24 1,990,438 3,260,739
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

—_—
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except
where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

1.1 Basls of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historical cost convention In accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement
of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts In accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the

Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act
2006,

The Lincolnshire Educational Trust Limited constitutes a public benefit entity as defined by FRS 102,
1.2 Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of gOIng concern is appropriate, i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Trust to
continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year
from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the academy
trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are
no material uncertainties about the academy trust's abllity to continue as a going concern, thus they
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
1.3 Income

Allincmiuresoumaanncombedmnm:ademvmmmmmma,mnwmn

T probable and the amount can be measured reliably:

Gnmmmmmmammlmmwm;mmnm
mamuobmmuhndlmmmbrmdﬁcmbutmwdmm
porlodthhMMlemwmm.wmmanluMMdm
mmwmmmmnumwmmmmimmmm
is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met.
Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities Incorporating Income and

mwlturcmmlnmmrmmuhmblwmmmmdmmmu
deducted from income and recognised as a liability,

Capital grants are recognised in full when there Is an unconditional entitiement to the grant. Unspent
mwmdapmlmnnmmmmmmmmamwmmamlmw
arcnoo.nbodwhtnm«eBmﬂdmwmmdmamrmmdmmaonwmhtheym
expended.

Sponsorship income provided to the academy trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the
Suumtdﬁmndalkuvmulmrwmhghmmca\dwmmmmlnmwIanhnis

M(MMmmmwmmmeMMImbMudnunbe
measured reliably.

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where
the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

marlmm,kﬂoﬁmmmabdnmbncmkedlﬂmwmmnkmmbhandwthe
extent the academy trust has provided the goods or services.

WhennuuandEabinm:nrmbymmwummmﬁmmmm,mmmm
muaremeuuudathlrvduelndmcmbodhmebalanceshmatlhopolmwhenthe risks and
mmofomv*ipussmmmmmmlmmdlmmlsmomlndasmufcron
conversion within donations and capital grant income to the net assets received.

1.4 Expenditure

Expendltuniswludonamerelulqalormucﬂveoblluuonwmndormomlcbmtﬂttoa
third party, It is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settiement and the amount
of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are
McmthdwmmdsthmwwmnMMImmInundemkin.each
.amy.mwmmnwammnmammmw«mmwmu
contribute to more than moacﬂawwamponmwhld\nnotatnibuuucmaslwcamvityln
ammmmmnmmwMMNdm.amIMmam
Mmtheb&sdﬁmsmmddqmdﬁmdw;udoamdmhpoﬂbndmwsuu.
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THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED
(A company limited by guarantee)

T —————————————————————
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

. Expenditure on Raising Funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable
purposes and includes casts of all fundraising activities, events and non-charitable trading.

. Charitable Actlvities
These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs
and costs refating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT,
1.5 Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Assets costing £700 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government
or from the private sector, they are Included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their
expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the
continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement
of Financial Activities incorporating income and expenditure account and carried forward in the Balance
Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the
Statement of Financlal Activities incorporating income and expenditure account. Where tangible fixed assets
have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off
the cost of these assets, less their estimated residual value, over their expected useful lives on the following

bases:

Freehold buildings - 2% or 10% straight line
Leasehold buildings - 2% straight line
Leasehold improvements . 0% to 10% straight line
Assets under construction . Not depreciated
Furniture and equipment - 20% straight line
Computer equipment . 33% straight line
Motor vehicles - 20% straight line

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets |s not charged until
they are brought into use and reclassified to freehold or leasehold land and buiidings.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed

assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in
the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating income and expenditure account.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
1.6 Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it

settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust
anﬁcblmitwmmmm&&nd&twlhmmkhum»ﬁummdmmnufam;mds
or services it must provide.

1.7 Provisions
Prcviﬂonsaremommwhmthoandmtmsthumohl@donatthuepoﬂh.dmaumuhofa

past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the
effect of the time value of money is material, the provision Is based on the present value of those amounts,
discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liabliity. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

1.8 Leased assets

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
1.9 Financial instruments

The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102, The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt Instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 16, Prepayments are not financlal instruments.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured st face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financlal instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detalled in note 17. Taxation and social security are not included in the
financial instruments disclosure definition, Deferred income is not deemed to be 3 financial liabllity, as the

mhmﬂemhualmadyukenﬂmandmisanobﬂuﬂmtodoeruMcsmh«than cash or
another financial instrument.

1.10 Stock

Unsoldunifonm,utoﬁngswch,dlstodulwmndfyiwmmvaluedatthelowerofmormnallsahle
value.

1.11 Taxation

The academy trust Is considered to pass the tests set out In Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010
and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UX corporation tax purposes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of

the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to
charitable purposes.

1.12 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
(“TPS") and the Local Governments Pension Scheme ("LGPS"), These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary based on quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-
employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated

as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to
which they relate.

The LGPSisafundodmum-emplmuchmmdthoumsmhddupomclyﬁomv\oaohhemdenw
trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities
are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate
equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to
the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance
sheet date. The amounts charged to net income/(expenditure) are the current service costs and the costs of
scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff
costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement
of Financial Activities incorporating income and expenditure account and comprises the interest cost on the
defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value
of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The
difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is
recognised in other recognised gains and losses,

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
1,13 Fund accounting

Umﬂwlmowwmmmwmm“ummwunwdm

mmwmmaumwmwmdammbcmmwsudkmhlmhmdby
the funder/donor and include grants from the Department of Education.

mmlmmmmulmmwwmmmwm
funder/donor and include grants from the Department of Education,

1.14 Agency arrangements

Thenadmwamummhdbuibuﬂuls-lshnmwfmnﬂ\eisn.mm:an use up
to 5% of the allocation towards its own administration costs. The funds received and paid and any balances
are disclosed in note 30,

1.15 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

EutmumdjudnmsmmUmWMmdmwmhwmmmdm
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actus! results. The estimates and
usmptmmnhmaﬁmlﬂumﬂwdaduam-dbmtmewMummofm
and labilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

mmmuedtumlmzmmmmmmmmamm
olfactonﬂmmdmmﬂmdMMMIMWNUWMWTMmuWWMIn
determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed In note 25, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll
hmwommmmmmmmmmwmmmnnmmhzoxs
hasbnnuudbyﬁemwyhuldmﬂnpmsbmlbﬂltyuﬁkm&lﬂl&h«ydmbﬂwm
theﬂgummfromthcrdlfawdlmdtwdlhnxnmhlvahaﬂmmldimmonm
carrying amount of the pension liability.

1.16 Comparatives

On 1 July 2019, ummwm«mmwnmmmdwmmuunda! of the operations and
assets and liabilities were transferred to The Lincolnshire Educational Trust Limited. Therefore the figures for
2018/19 are representative of University Academy Holbeach, Holbeach Primary Academy, Holbeach Bank
Academy and Gosberton House Academy for the full financial year and University Academy Long Sutton
from 1 July 2019. The current year represents all five academies for the full period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

2 DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS

Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2020 2020 2020 2018
£ £ £ £
Capital grants 1,683,015 1,683,015 142,166
Other donations 31,516 31,516 -
1,714,531 1,714,531 142,166
Total 2015 - 142,166 142,166
3 FUNDING FOR THE ACADEMY TRUST'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS
Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds Sfunds
2020 2020 2020 2019
£ £ £ £
DfE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant 13,534,069 13,534,069 10,521,735
Start Up Grant - . . 94,500
Other DfE/ESFA - Revenue Grants - 180,404 180,404 125,484
Other DfE/ESFA - TPG/TPECG . 713,697 713,697 81,171
Pupil Premium - 712,554 712,554 484,853
15,140,724 15,140,724 1 1‘307, 743
Total 2019 - 11,307,743 11,307,743
Other Government grants
Local authority grants 1,432,233 1,432,233 3.075056
Total 2019 3,072,056 3,072,056
Exceptional Government funding
Coronavirus exceptional support 11,188 11,188 -

Total 2019

The academy trust has been eligible to claim additional funding in year from government support schemes in
response to the coronavirus outbreak. The funding received is shown above under "exceptional government

funding®.

*  The funding received for coronavirus exceptional support covers £11,188 of free school meal
voucher costs. These costs are included in notes 6 and 7 as appropriate,
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020
4 OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES
Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds Sfunds
2020 2020 2020 2019
k3 £ £ £
Outreach services 3,752 - 3,752 9,493
Catering Income 220,727 36,780 257,507 387,693
Sales to pupils - 1,599 1,599 4,559
Hire of facilities 9,196 - 9,196 4,369
Other income - 293,470 293,470 236,270
Apprenticeship income - 169,056 169,056 190,836
Music tuition - 1,663 1,663 7,059
233,675 502,568 736,243 ﬂn
Totel 2019 350,166 490,113 840,275
5 INVESTMENT INCOME
Unrestricted Total Total
funds funds Sunds
2020 2020 2019
£ £ £
Investment income - other local investments 5,146 5,146 7‘239
Total 2019 7,239 7,239
6 EXPENDITURE
Total Total
2020 2018
£ £
Funding for the academy trust's educational operations 19‘“2& 14,474idos
7 ANALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE BY ACTIVITIES
Analysis of direct costs
Total Total
2020 2019
£ £
Pension interest 126,000 95,000
Educational supplies 387,535 523,906
Outreach costs 316,119 325,814
Technology costs 182,266 138,652
Examination fees 205,350 226,016
Staff development 72,011 66,903
Other costs 109,842 179,177
Wages and salaries 9,418,999 7,245,062
National insurance 949,156 717,699
Pension costs 2,697,015 1,348,576
Depreciation 339,084 206,881
14‘803,377 11,078,686
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7 ANALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE BY ACTIVITIES (continued)

Analysis of support costs
Total Total!
2020 2019
£ £
Wages and salaries 2,848,228 1,876,973
Depreciation 181,982 165,947
(Profit)/loss on disposal of fixed assets (311) (442)
Recruitment and support 45,988 45,949
Maintenance of premises and equipment 287,808 199,622
Cleaning 40,746 21,494
Rent and rates 158,132 115,546
Energy costs 244,723 165,880
Insurance 109,417 105,181
Transport 108,024 43,605
Telephone, postage and stationery 139,815 102,163
Catering 279,707 316,266
Other costs 94,117 103,368
Bank interest and charges 1,070 1,413
Auditor's remuneration 20,750 12,758
Legal fees 11,039 40,444
Professional fees 68,218 79,552
4,639,453 3,395,719

During the year ended 31st August 2020, the Trust incurred the following governance costs:

£88,968 (2019 - £92,310) included within the table above in respect of funding for the Trust's educational
operations,

8 EXPENDITURE
Other
Staff costs Premises costs Total Total
2020 2020 2020 2020 2019
Funding for the Trust: £ £ £ £ £
Direct costs 13,191,170 339,084 1,273,123 14,803,377 11,078,686
Support costs 2,848,228 840,826 950,399 4,639,453 3,395,719
16,039,398 1,179,910 2,223,522 19,442,830 14,474,405
Total 2019 11,287,310 814,604 2,37&491 14,474,405
9 NET INCOME/(EXPENDITURE)
This is stated after charging: 2020 2019
£ £
Depreciation 521,066 372,828
{Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets (311) (442)
Fees payable to auditor for:
- audit 17,110 12,758
- other services 3,640 1,857
Operating lease rentals 53,389 “i 770
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10 STAFF COSTS
Staff costs were as follows:
2020 2018
€ £
Wages 2nd salaries 10,837,557 8,270,036
Social Security costs 1,078,276 811,542
Operating costs of defined benefit pension scheme 3,819,744 1,932,387
15,735,577 11,013,965
Agency staff costs 295,821 267,699
Staff restructuring costs 8,000 5,646

16,039,398 11,287,310
& L

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Redundancy payments - 5,646
Severance payments 8,000 -
8,000 5,646

T —_——

Included in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments totaling £8,000 (2019 -
£NII). Individually the payment was £8,000.

The average number of persons employed by the Trust during the year was as follows:

2020 2019

No. No.

Management 15 20
Teachers 186 137
Support 222 167

427 324
—_—

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 was:

2019
No.

In the band £60,001 - £70,000

In the band £70,001 - £80,000

In the band £80,001 - £90,000

In the band £90,001 - £100,000

In the band £100,001 - £200,000

au.hwgg

oy W,

The key management of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management team. The total
amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions) received by key management personnel
for their services to the academy trust was £1,690,781 (2019 - £1,384,663).
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11 CENTRAL SERVICES

The Trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

Consultancy services
The Trust charges for these services on the following basis;
Time apportioned (based on actual time spent).
The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

University Academy Holbeach
Holbeach Primary Academy
Holbeach Bank Academy
Gosberton House Academy
University Academy Long Sutton
Total

12 TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES

15,048
71,000
B

39,600
5,604
2,148
8,600

2019

£
27,416
3,655
1,371
6,580
1,383

-t

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment with the
academy trust. The Principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they
provide undertaking the roles of principal and other staff members under their contracts of employment, and not
In respect of their role as Trustees. The value of Trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows (all of

whom resigned from their role as Trustees in June and July 2019):

Mr S Baragwanath (UAM/UALS) Remuneration

(Exec. Principal/Trustee) Pension contributions paid
Mrs S Boor (HPA/HBA) Remuneration

{Exec. Principal/Trustee) Pension contributions paid
Mrs L Stanton (GHA) Remuneration

{Exec. Principal/Trustee) Pension contributions pald
Mr A Breckon Remuneration

(CEO/Trustee) Pension contributions paid

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nit

Nil
Nil

2019

£

90,000 -95,000
15,000 - 20,000

65,000 - 70,000
10,000 - 15,000

75,000-80,000
10,000-15,000

25,000 - 30,000
Nil

During the year travel and subsistence expenses totalling ENil (2019 - £1,806) were reimbursed to 0 Trustees (2019

-2).

13 TRUSTEES' AND OFFICERS' INSURANCE

The academy trust has opted into the Department for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees and
officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business, and
provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees' and officers’ indemnity element from

the overall cost of the RPA scheme.

Page 41



2 9Bey

6SL'LS6'PT | ¥5S0°S ST6I8T 28781 £09°196 SET'TESD  pZZ'S60%

LTEESY'IT ISLy1 60V'VEZ SOS'ELP'T  890'6L0'T SLO'E6E'9  889'SZTL

660 LTV'E 8¥Z'sS ZIEZEST  9TIT'BLL LET'09Y S26'60S TOT°0€T

{£8¥) (z8v) > B - -

990125 ¥50's 862'56 0£9'e8 £98°0L 090°8€T 19T'0ET

0Z5'968'C 6105 T0S'6EY' T 98S'SH9 VLE'68E S9BILE -

9TP0L8'6T $Z8°649°1

[(373) - (eve) - - s - -

088'910 151°65 SIZ'SET SOS'ELY'T  $TE'88L . 579'091

6LT'VS8'LT | 8YT'SS 9I#'IZ9'T  0I¥'8Z8 186'0SE'T 000'E06'9  ¥ZZ'S60'L

3 3 E 3 3 3 3 kS

|e3oL SIPIYAA wawdinbs  Juawdinba  uogonnsuod sUBWIACdW] sTuPng sdujpjing
10300 sndwo)  pue 43pun s3assy  pjoyasea pue puey pue pue|

aunyuing pioyesea]  ployaasy

6T0Z 3snbny Ig 3y

0202 ¥3sndny 1€y
anjeA jooq Jay

020Z ¥sn8ny Iy
spesodsip up

Jead ayy Joj afey)
6107 Jaquaydas T 3y
uopepaidag

020z 3sn8ny T¢Iy
sjesodsjg

SUORIPPY

UO(SAOALI0D UO PaLIasues]
6107 Rqundas T 3y
150)

SLISSV Q3aX1d M8IONYL vT

0Z0Z 1SNONV TE GIANI YV3IA IHL HO4
SINIWNALYLS TVIONVNH 3HL OL SILON

(eaquesend Aq paguy Auedwoo y)
CGILINN ISNUL TYNOLLYINGAI JMIHSNIOONIT 3HL



THE LINCOLNSHIRE EDUCATIONAL TRUST LIMITED

(A company limited by guarantee)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020
15 STOCKS
2020 2019
£ £
Consumables 42,392 42,561
_ ———
16 DEBTORS
2020 2018
£ £
Trade debtors 233,061 56,281
VAT repayable 107,703 135,825
Other debtors 275,436 146,792
Prepayments and accrued income 692,666 179,299
1,308,866 5185197
17 CREDITORS: Amounts falling due within one year
2020 2019
£ £
Trade creditors 259,969 491,807
Other creditors 46,277 17,093
Accruals and deferred income 692,271 479,095
BT, _seses
2020 2019
£ £
Deferred income
Deferred income at 1 September 2019 67,222 295,885
Resources deferred during the year 142,673 64,726
Amounts released from previous years (66,598| {293,389)
143,297 67,222

Deferred income comprises grants received in the year towards future expenditure.
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18 STATEMENT OF FUNDS
Balance As Balance As
Atl At31
September Transfers Gains/ August
2019 income ~Expenditure——infout—(tosses) 2020
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted funds
General funds 83,129 - - - 83,129
Hire of premises 38,729 9,196 - - - 47,925
Investment income 31,318 5,146 - - - 36,464
Catering income 235,309 220,727 (242,927) - - 213,108
Outreach 38,440 3,752 - - - 42,192
426,925 238,821 (242,927) - - 422,819
Restricted funds
GAG 1,060,577 13,531,859 (13,325,494) (333,298) - 933,644
Start Up Grant 74,000 - (74,000) - - -
Other ESFA grants - 803,779 (803,779) - -
Rates funding - 101,510 (101,510) - - -
Other government grants 1,148,131 762,867 (1,045,076) - - 865,922
Total other income - 260,698 (260,698) - - -
School fund 123,869 64,288 (67,363) - - 120,794
Bursary - admin element - 2,210 (2,210) - - -
Outreach - 617,496 (617,496) - - .
Pupil Premium - 712,554 (712,554) - - -
Sports Premium - 51,870 (51,870) - - -
Catering - 36,780 (36,780) . - -
Sales to pupils - 1,599 (1,599) - - -
Apprenticeship - 169,056 (169,056) - - -
Music - 1,663 {1,663) - - -
Pension reserve __(5,871,000) - { 000 - 195,000) (7,474,000)
_(3.464,423) 17,118,229 (18,679,148) (333,298) (195,000 (5,553,640)
Restricted fixed asset funds
Restricted fixed asset funds 14,957,759 1,683,015 (520,755) 333,298 - 453,317
Total restricted funds 21,493,336 18,801,244 (19,199,903) - (195,000) 10,899,677
Total funds

11,920,261 19,040,065 (19,442,830) - (195,000) 11,322,496

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Trust was not subject to a limit on the amount of
GAGthatitcouldwryfomardatSlAusustzozo
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18 STATEMENT OF FUNDS

Ccmpmﬂulnbrmnﬂonhmmddupnadlmnﬁodhuwm

Unrestricted funds
General funds

Hire of premises
Investment income
Catering income
Outreach

Restricted funds

GAG

Start Up Grant

Other ESFA grants

Rates funding

Other government grants
Total other income
School fund

Bursary - admin element
Outreach

Pupil Premium

Sports Premium
Catering

Sales to puplils
Apprenticeship

Music

Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
Restricted fixed asset funds

Total restricted funds

Total funds

Balanceat 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2018 Income Expenditure In/out (Losses) 2019
£ £ £ £ £ £
83,129 - - - 83,129
34,360 4,369 - - 38,729
24,079 7,239 - - - 31,318
163,882 336,304 (264,877) - - 235,309
28,947 9,493 - - 38,440
334,397 357,405 (264,877) - - 426,925
1,188,897 10,519,475 (10,191,230) (456,565) - 1,060,577
94,500 (20,500) . - 74,000
118,256 (118,256) - . -
88,399 (88,399) . - .
15,475 2,402,606 (1,269,950) . - 1,148,131
520 118,268 (118,788) - - -
112,480 118,002 (106,613) - - 123,869
. 2,260 (2,260) - - .

- 617,500 (617,500) - -

- 484,853 (484,853) - s

- 51,950 {51,950) - -

51,389 {51,389) - -

4,559 (4,559) . -

190,836 (190,836) - -
- 7.059 (7,059) - - -
(3,185,000] 680,000 (513,000 - (1,493,000) (5,871,000
1,867,628) 14,189912 (13 837,142) 456,565) (1,493,000) (3,464,423
7,991,414 6,882,166 (372,386) 456,565 - 14,957,758

6,123,786 21,072,078 (14,209,528) -

(1,493,000) 11,493,336

6,458,183 21,429,483 (14,474,405) -

(1,493,000) 11,920,261
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18 STATEMENT OF FUNDS (continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:
General Annual Grant (GAG) must be used for the normal running costs of the Trust.

Other DfE/EFSA Grants comprise of various grants awarded for specific projects, in particular to boost standards of
attainment. Grants include Pupll Premium funding which Is intended to support education from pupils from a
disadvantaged background.

Local government grants includes funding provided for pupils with Statements of Special Educational Needs and is
used by the Trust to assist with the pupil's education.

DevolvedcapiulfundhgbthaMedwmdcmismweukuuﬁtinomsm“inprwmntsm
buildings or facilities, or the repair or refurbishment of such.

Other capital grants are provided to the Trust based on specific bids for individual projects.

Other income comprises various other receipts. The income is classed as restricted or unrestricted based on the
nature of the income.

The pension reserve arises from the actuarial measurement of the Trust's share of the Local Government Pension
Sdmmdeﬁdt.mlsdcﬁdtisreeordednamvblm.mmuahlmdomplmmmmmrh
Initially reflected in the normal running costs of the Trust in the restricted pension fund. The amount included in
resources expended represents the pension cost for the year charged to income 2nd expenditure that arises from
actuarial calculations of service cost rather than employer contributions pald, and amounts to £1,412,000.
Actuarial gains and mmatmmmnmhmpﬁombymaawyuwid«inﬂuemamshwnh
the restricted pension fund, the movement this year being a net £195,000 actuarial increase in the net pension
fund deficit,

Restricudﬂndassetfundsmmmvﬂnreceivedmmofa\dspcmonfnmehisincluduuuu
inherited on conversion. The total of resources expended within this fund include the depreciation charge for the
year. The transfers ﬁ;umhthoamwmofou\ufundsusedtommﬂndm

ANALYSIS OF ACADEMIES BY FUND BALANCE
Fund balances at 31 August 2020 were allocated as follows:

Total 2020 Total 2019

£ £

University Academy Holbeach 871,323 958,550
Holbeach Primary Academy 286,017 254,652
Gosberton House Academy 354,664 343,157
Holbeach Bank Academy 17,751 24,664
University Academy Long Sutton (26,160) 77,983
The Lincoinshire Educational Trust 839,584 1,174,496
Total before fixed asset fund and pension reserve 2,343,179 2,833,502
Restricted fixed asset fund 16,453,317 14,957,759
Pension reserve ,474,000 (5,871,000)
Total 11,322,496 11,920,261
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18 STATEMENT OF FUNDS (continued)

University Academy Long Sutton is carrying a net deficit of £26,160 on these funds due to initial spending on
conversion of upgrading the academy in line with the rest of the Trust alongside reduced income due to the
impact of Covid-19.

The academy trust has taken steps to return the academy to a surplus by changing supplier contracts where
possible to represent better value for money alongside an organic reduction on the initial spending and the
foresight of the academy remaining open to allow income to resume as normal.

ANALYSIS OF ACADEMIES BY COST
Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:
Teaching
and Other

educational support Educational Other costs
support staff costs supplies exc.depr'n Total 2020  Totol 2019

£ £ £ £ £ £
University Academy Holbeach 7,015,793 1,360,176 569,327 748040 9693336 9339271
Holbeach Primary Academy 1,412,337 234,094 74,870 240,621 1,961,922 1,796,787
Gosberton House Academy 1,499,540 265,881 388,571 145,746 2,299,738 2,260,480
University Academy Long Sutton 3,263,500 858,568 168,344 531,927 4,822,339 573,488
Uincolnshire Educational Trust - 129,509 . 15,231 144,740 131,993

13,191,170 2‘848,223 1£1qu 1,681,565 18922075 14,102,019
——

19 ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS

Fundhhnmaslmwzowmmmw:
Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset
funds funds funds Total funds

£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - - 16,453,317 16,453,317
Current assets 422,819 2,918,877 - 3,341,696
Creditors due within one year - (998,517) . (998,517)
Creditors due in more than one year - - . .
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (7,474,000) - (7,474,000)

422819 (5,553,640) 16,453,317 11,322,496

Componuveinfofmoﬁwhmsmofmwmnﬂodbnmm
Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset
funds funds funds Total funds

£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - - 14,957,759 14,957,759
Current assets 426,925 3,394,572 - 3,821,497
Creditors due within one year - (987,995) . (987,995)
Creditors due in more than one year - - - -
Provisions for liabllities and charges - (5,871,000) - _{5.871,000)

426,925 (3,464,423' 14,857,759 11i920,261
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20 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
2020 2019
£ £
T Contracted for; but not provided in the finenclat statements 267,080 Cad i —
21 RECONCILIATION OF NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
2020 2018
£ £
Net income/(expenditure) for the year (as per Statement of Financial Activities) (402,765) 6,955,078
Adjusted for:
Depreciation charges 521,066 372,828
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (1,683,015) (142,166)
Interest receivable (5,146) (7,239)
Profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets (311) (442)
(Increase)/Decrease in stocks 168 6,385
(Increase)/Decrease in debtors (790,669) 91,401
Increase/(Decrease) in creditors 10,522 227,984
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 1,408,000 513,000
Net cash provided by operating activities ‘9451492 8,016,839
22 CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
2020 2019
£ £
Dividends, interest and rents from investments 5,146 7,239
Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets 567 442
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (2,016,880) (598,173)
Restricted FA fund transfer on conversion - (6,740,000)
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income 1,683,015 142,166
Pension scheme deficit transfer on conversion - 680,000
Net cash used in investing activities 328,152 LG‘SQJZSE
23 ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2020 2019
£ £

Cash at bank 1,990,438 iZSO, 739
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24 ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET DEBT

Atl New Other At31

September Cash finance non-cash August

2019 flows leases  changes 2020

£ £ £ £ £

Cash 3,260,739 (1,270,301) - < 1,990,438
Cash equivalents - 2 R = o
3,260,739 (1,270,301) - - 1,990,438

Loans falling due within one year - . . - -
Loans falling due after more than one year - . - - -
Finance lease obligations - - - ~ 5
Total 3,260,739 (1,270,301) 1,990,438

25 PENSION COMMITMENTS

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teacher's Pension Scheme for
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-

teaching staff, which is managed by Lincolnshire County Council. Both are multi-employer defined benefit pension
schemes

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March
2016.

There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial year,
Teachers' Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014, Membership Is automatic for teachers in academies. All teachers have
the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage of
salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by
public funds provided by Parliament,

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM
Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme
valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other
factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was

published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019, The key elements of the valuation and subsequent
consultation are:

. empioyer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy)
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25 PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

. total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £218,100 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions

d

notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

. the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, s used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE
rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPl, Assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in
excess of earnings. The rate of real eamings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate
of return including earnings growth is 4.45%,

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023,
The employer’s pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £1,761,414 (2019 - £922,931),

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation Is on the Teachers’ Pensions website
(www.md\mpenslom.oo.uklncws/anpbvcm/zms/m/wmcrm«\mmmponnx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The academy
trust hlucooumodhrmmwbmmmmemmoasﬁnmammmmm.ﬂnmdmw
trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit scheme, with assets held in separate trustee-administered funds. The total
contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2020 was £842,000 (2019 - £608,000), of which employer's
contributions totalled £672,000 (2019 - £482,000) and employee's contributions totalled £170,000 (2019 -
£126,000), The agreed employer contribution rates for future years are 20.9% for UAH, 18.9% for GHA, 20.4% for
HPA, 20.7% for HBA and 20.7% for UALS, The contribution rates for employees range from 5.5% to 12.5%.

Parﬂamemhumed,anhenqustoftheSmuryomeeforEduaﬂon,toamnuetm in the event of
academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for
Education, The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013,

The LGPS is in deficit. In order to finance the Trust’s share of the deficit, the Trust has entered into an agreement
to make additional lump sum contributions in addition to the normal funding levels for future years. The agreed
additional contributions are 2020/21 £96,000 and 2021/22 £98,000.

Principal actuarial assumptions:

2020 2018
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.7% 1.8%
Rate of increase in salaries 2.5% 2.7%
Rate of increase In pensions in payment/infiation 2.2% 2.3%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates, The
assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring today Retiring in 20 years
2020 2019 2020 2018
Males 214 21.2 224 225
Females 23.7 235 25.2 252
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25 PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

Sensitivity analysis
2020 2019
£'000 £000
Discount rate -0.1% 389 287
Salary increase rate +0.1% 40 36
CPirate +0.1% 342 245
The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:
Fair value at Fair value at
31 August 31 August
2020 2019
£ £
Equities 5,016,300 4,232,540
Debt instruments 1,454,000 927,680
Property 727,000 579,800
Cash 72,700 57,980
Total market value of assets 7,270,000 5‘ 798,000

The actual return on scheme assets was £129,000 (2019 - £146,000).

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure
account are as follows:

2020 2019

£ £

Current service cost {1,412,000) (822,000)
Past service cost {including curtaliments) - (54,000)
Interest income 129,000 146,000
interest cost (255,000) (241,000)

L58000) (673,000

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as follows:

2020 2018
£ £
Opening defined benefit obligation 12,531,000 8,128,000
Current service cost 1,412,000 822,000
Past service cost (including curtailments) - 54,000
Interest cost 255,000 241,000
Employee contributions 170,000 126,000
Actuarial losses (60,000) 1,666,000
Benefits paid (106,000) {72,000)
Effect of business combinations 542,000 1,566,000
Closing defined benefit obligation “I’“& 12231,(”0

The past service costs of £54,000 in 2019 arose as 3 direct result of the McCloud judgement.
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25 PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

Included within the effect of business combinations is £542,000 (2019 - £24,000) relating to the conversion of
University Academy Long Sutton (2019 - Holbeach Bank Academy) in the prior year which was not included on the

Tinital vatuationrof the pension deficit:

Movement in the fair value of the Trust's share of scheme assets:

2020 2019

£ £

Opening fair value of scheme assets 6,660,000 4,943,000
Interest income 129,000 146,000
Actuarial gains and (losses) (255,000) 173,000
Employer contributions 672,000 482,000
Employee contributions 170,000 126,000
Benefits paid {106,000) (72,000)
Effect of business combinations - 862,000
Closing fair value of scheme assets 7,270& 6,660‘000

26 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 August 2020 the total of the Trust's future minimum lease payments under non-canceliable operating leases
was:

2020 2019
£ £

Amounts payable:
Within 1 year 25,818 46,488
Between 1 and 5 years 1,673 24,070
Total 27,451 70‘558

27 MEMBERS' LIABILITY

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it
being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount
as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a
member.
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28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Owing to the nature of the Trust's aperations and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustees have
an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements of
the Academies Financial Handbook, Including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 April 2019
and obtaining their approval where required, and with the academy trust's financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions. The following related party
transactions took place in the financial period.

2020 2019
£ £

During the year the Trust made the following related party transactions:
University of Linceln - Expenditure 18,332 17,677
University of Lincoln - income 132,583 173,410
AMB Educational Consultancy £Nil 17,528

University of Lincoln - During the year the income received from the University relates to the apprentice contracts
of £132,583 (2019 - £173,410). The Trust are sub-contractors to the main contract, Prof T Wilkinson, Prof A
Hunter, Prof V Braybrooks, Prof | Abrahams and Prof D French were all employed by the University and were also
Directors of the Trust within the current pericd. Ms C Hamblett was employed by the University but was not a
Director of the Trust in the current period, The expenditure incurred during the year of £18,332 (2019 - £17,677)
relates to time recharged from Central Services, management fees for the Apprentice Programme and the supply
of accommodation and resources within the Minerva House bulding. At the balance sheet date the amount due to
the trust was £13,020, In 2019 the balance at the year end was £16,475 which was owed to the Trust.

AMB Education Consultancy Ltd - A company owned by Andy Breckon (CEO of the Trust). During the year the Trust
recelved consultancy services from AMB Education Consultancy Ltd totalling £Nil (2019 - £ 17,928). At the balance
sheet date the amount due to AMB Educational Consultancy was £NII, In 2019 that balance at the year end was
£Nil owed to AMB Educational Consultancy,

In entering into the transactions above, the Trust has complied with the requirements of the Academies Financial
Handbook 2019. The elements above £2,500 have been provided 'at no more than cost' and the University of
Lincoln and AMB Educational Consultancy have provided statements of assurance confirming this.

29 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the period of the Funding Agreement, in the event of the sale or disposal by other means of any asset for
which a Government Grant was received, the Trust is required to re-invest the proceeds or to repay to the
Secretary of State for Education the same proportion of the proceeds of the sale or disposal as equates with the
proportion of the original cost met by the Secretary of State.

Upon termination of the Funding Agreement, whether as a result of the Secretary of State or the Trust serving
notice, the Trust shall repay to the Secretary of State sums determined by reference to:

{a) the value at that time of the Trust's site and premises and other assets held for the purpose of the Trust; and

{b) the extent to which the expenditure incurred in providing those assets was met by payments by the Secretary
of State under the Funding Agreement.
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30 AGENCY ARRANGEMENTS

The academy trust distributes 16 -19 bursary funds to students as an agent for the ESFA. In the accounting period
ending 31 August 2020 the trust received £44,201 (2019 - £45,193) and distributed £38,192 (2019 - £37,831) from
the fund, The balance of £19,789 (2019 - £13,780) will be distributed to students in the coming year.

31 CONVERSION TO AN ACADEMY TRUST

On 1 July 2019 University Academy Long Sutton, converted to academy status under the Academies Act 2010 and
all the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to The Lincoinshire Educational Trust Limited from
Lincolnshire County Council for £nil consideration.

The transfer was accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and liabilities transferred
were valued at thelr fair value and recegnised in the balance sheet under the appropriate headings with a
corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the statement of financial activities Incorporating income
and expenditure account as Transfer on conversion.

The following table sets out the fair values of the Identifiable assets and liabilitles transferred and an analysis of
their recognition in the statement of financial activities Incorporating income and expenditure account for the
prior year.

Restricted
fixed
Unrestricted Restricted assets Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets
Freehold land and bulldings - - 6,740,000 6,740,000
Other assets
LGPS pension deficit - (680,000) - (680,000)
- {680,000) 6,740,000 S‘OG0,0(XJ

No cash was transferred upon conversion,
There were no such conversions in the current financial year.
32 EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
There are no events to note for the current financial period.
For the prior period, in October 2019 a funding agreement between The Lincolnshire Educational Trust Limited
and Lincolnshire County Council was signed for the provision of funding amounting to £1,462,060 for the

construction of a new multiple classroom block at the University Academy Holbeach site to increase the total
¢apacity by 300 and Increase the Published Admission Number {PAN) to 240.
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